
County Offices
Newland

Lincoln
LN1 1YL

11 September 2017

Public Protection and Communities Scrutiny Committee

A meeting of the Public Protection and Communities Scrutiny Committee will be held 
on Tuesday, 19 September 2017 at 10.00 am in Lecture Room 4, Emergency 
Planning and Business Continuity Centre, Lincolnshire Fire and Rescue 
Headquarters, South Park Avenue, Lincoln, LN5 8EL for the transaction of the 
business set out on the attached Agenda. 

Yours sincerely

Tony McArdle
Chief Executive

Membership of the Public Protection and Communities Scrutiny Committee 
(11 Members of the Council)

Councillors N H Pepper (Chairman), A N Stokes (Vice-Chairman), B Adams, 
W J Aron, C J T H Brewis, R D Butroid, K J Clarke, C R Oxby, Mrs C L Perraton-
Williams, L Wootten and R Wootten

Public Document Pack





PUBLIC PROTECTION AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE AGENDA
TUESDAY, 19 SEPTEMBER 2017

Item Title Pages 

1 Apologies for Absence/Replacement Members 

2 Declaration of Members' Interests 

3 Minutes of the meeting held on 18 July 2017 5 - 14

4 Announcements by Executive Councillors and Chief Officers 

5 Quarter 1 Performance Report (1 April 2017 - 30 June 2017) 
(To receive a report from Daryl Pearce, County Manager Public 
Protection; Nicole Hilton, Community Assets and Resilience 
Commissioning Manager and Nick Borrill, Chief Fire Officer, 
which provides the Committee with performance and customer 
satisfaction information for Quarter 1 2016/17 relevant to Public 
Protection, Lincolnshire Fire and Rescue, Libraries and Heritage 
Services as set out in the Council's Business Plan)

15 - 42

6 Change of Service Delivery Strategy and Transition from 
Home Safety Checks to Safe and Well Visits 
(To receive a report from Simon York, Area Manager Planning, 
Prevention & Protection, which seeks to inform committee 
members of the key changes to our Home Safety Check service 
delivery strategy and provide an understanding of the new Safe 
and Well Check that is currently being piloted)

43 - 62

7 Public Protection and Communities Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme 
(To receive a report from Daniel Steel, Scrutiny Officer, which 
enables the Committee to consider and comment on the content 
of its work programme for the coming year to ensure that scrutiny 
activity is focused where it can be of greatest benefit)

63 - 70



Democratic Services Officer Contact Details 

Name: Rachel Wilson

Direct Dial 01522 552107

E Mail Address rachel.wilson@lincolnshire.gov.uk

Please note:  for more information about any of the following please contact 
the Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting

 Business of the meeting
 Any special arrangements
 Copies of reports

Contact details set out above.

All papers for council meetings are available on: 
www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/committeerecords

http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/committeerecords


1

PUBLIC PROTECTION AND 
COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE
25 JULY 2017

PRESENT:  COUNCILLOR N H PEPPER (CHAIRMAN)

Councillors A N Stokes (Vice-Chairman), B Adams, C J T H Brewis, K J Clarke, 
L Wootten, R Wootten, Mrs J Brockway and M A Whittington

Councillors: W J Aron, R D Butroid, C N Worth and B Young attended the meeting as 
observers

Officers in attendance:-

Nick Borrill (Chief Fire Officer), Louise Egan (Library and Heritage Client Lead), 
Nicole Hilton (Chief Community Engagement Officer), Daryl Pearce (County Manager 
Public Protection), Donna Sharp (County Service Manager (Registration, Celebratory 
& Coroners Services)), James Sharples (Transition Manager), Daniel Steel (Scrutiny 
Officer) and Rachel Wilson (Democratic Services Officer)

6    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE/REPLACEMENT MEMBERS

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Mrs C L Perraton-Williams.

7    DECLARATIONS OF COUNCILLOR'S INTERESTS

There were no declarations of interest at this point in the meeting.

8    MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 13 JUNE 2017

RESOLVED

That the minutes of the meeting held on 13 June 2017 be signed by the 
Chairman as a correct record.

Some queries raised during consideration of the minutes included the following:
 In relation to the report from a previous task and finish group on the 

relationship with town and parish councils, it was noted that this had been 
passed to Bev Finnegan to follow up.  One member also commented that 
LALC was very keen to maintain the close working relationship with the 
County Council and this had been conveyed to the Leader.  Members were 
also advised that there was a piece of work in place with the community 
engagement team on this subject, and there was already very close liaison but 
there was a need to look at how best the County Council could help and 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



2
PUBLIC PROTECTION AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
25 JULY 2017

advise town and parish councils.  It was confirmed that a report would come 
back to the Committee in due course.

 It was queried whether there was any feedback in relation to the fatal collision, 
and it was confirmed that Councillor L Wootten had been approached by 
highways officers following the meeting.

 It was queried whether street lighting would be coming back to this Committee 
from a community safety point of view.  Members were advised that a report 
was likely to go to Overview and Scrutiny Management Board as it would be of 
a cross cutting nature. Officers would enquire about whether there was any 
merit in bringing the report to this Committee from a public safety perspective.  
One councillor commented that it was her understanding that the police 
representative would bring a report back but 12 months of data was required.

9    ANNOUNCEMENTS BY THE CHAIRMAN, EXECUTIVE COUNCILLORS 
AND CHIEF OFFICERS

There were no announcements by the Chairman, Executive Councillors or Chief 
Officers.

10    QUARTER 4 PERFORMANCE REPORT  (1 JANUARY TO 31 MARCH 
2017)

The Committee received a report which provided performance and customer 
satisfaction information for Quarter 4 2016/17 relevant to Public Protection, 
Lincolnshire Fire and Rescue and Libraries and Heritage as set out in the Council's 
Business Plan.

Members were guided through the performance information and were provided with 
the opportunity to ask questions to the officers present in relation to the information 
contained in the report and some of the points raised included the following:

 It was known that incidents of domestic abuse were under-reported, but the 
numbers reported were in line with national statistics.  It was highlighted that 
an increase in incidents reported would not necessarily mean there were more 
victims, but that more people were being encouraged to come forward.  Work 
was being carried out to try and engage with the hard to reach groups.

 It was queried what publicity material there was on how people could 
confidentially report incidents of domestic abuse either towards themselves or 
friends and family.  Members were advised that there were a lot of third party 
charities who could help in these situations, who would ask if they could have 
the authority to report the incident to the Police.

 It was queried whether there was a correlation between the number of police 
officers in an area and how safe it was, as Lincoln had been judged as the 
most unsafe place in the county, whilst North Kesteven was the safest.  
Members were advised that officers were not governed by district boundaries, 
but there were many factors for why Lincoln was considered more unsafe than 
other places including socio-economic factors, population density, having a 
night-time economy and there would always be a difference between urban 
and rural areas.  It was also noted that when someone was arrested and taken 

Page 6



3
PUBLIC PROTECTION AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

25 JULY 2017

into custody in Lincoln, regardless of where the person was from, that would 
be included in Lincoln's figures.  It was confirmed that there were more police 
officers in Lincoln, and that they would be deployed where the requirement 
was.

 Concerns were raised regarding elderly people living alone who may become 
victims of fraudsters and be too afraid to report it to the police, and it was 
queried how reporting of this could be encouraged.  Members were advised 
that work was ongoing with the Police and Trading Standards.  Information on 
this work would be forwarded to members of the Committee.

 Members were advised that Councillor R Wootten had been nominated as the 
Council's Domestic Abuse representative, whose role it was to ensure that the 
Council was supporting its staff.  It was reported that there was an online 
training package, as well as face to face training available for staff in 
recognising and supporting victims of domestic abuse.  It was suggested that 
all councillors should complete the online course.

 It was queried whether there was a reason for an increase in the figures of 
people killed or seriously injured in road traffic collisions between July and 
September.  Members were advised that this was likely due to the increased 
volume of traffic on the roads during summer as it was the holiday season.  It 
was noted that officers would drill down further into these figures to determine 
how many of the casualties were visitors to the county, as well as the 
geographical location of the collisions.

 Satisfaction with response to crime and anti-social behaviour – it was queried 
why this measure had not been achieved.  However, members were advised 
that this figure had since increased to 59%, it was also noted that this measure 
covered the 'whole journey' so whilst there may be higher satisfaction with the 
initial response from the police, a person may then be disappointed with what 
happened in court.  It was acknowledged that there was some work to be done 
in relation to managing expectations of what the outcomes may be.  Concerns 
were raised regarding whether there was a risk that this figure would drop 
lower as people were encouraged to report crimes online, however, officers 
advised that they believed the opposite would happen as people would be 
able to track the progress of their report online.

 It was noted that the reporting of domestic abuse in South Holland and West 
Lindsey had increased, and it was queried why that was and if there was 
anything that other areas could duplicate.  Members were advised that these 
areas did not have a different reporting method, but some of the support 
services were slightly different, but this should not affect the figures.

RESOLVED

That the performance information presented be noted.

11    UPDATE ON THE FIRE AND RESCUE RETAINED DUTY SYSTEM 
REVIEW

It was reported that in November 2016, Lincolnshire Fire and Rescue (LFR) 
presented a paper which laid out its Retained Duty System (RDS) Improvement 
Strategy.  This Strategy established an action plan to respond to the national report 

Page 7



4
PUBLIC PROTECTION AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
25 JULY 2017

'A professional view of the Challenges for recruitment and retention in the Fire and 
Rescue Retained (on call) Sector' and also to the findings of an extensive local 
review of the RDS as it operated in Lincolnshire.

It was reported that Lincolnshire Fire and Rescue had 48 fire engines to respond to 
emergencies; 39 of these were crewed by personnel working the Retained Duty 
System (RDS) and represented 81% of the operational staff.  RDS staff responded to 
emergency incidents on an "on call" basis and provided an effective and efficient 
community Service.  Members were advised that the RDS review was one of the 
most important projects for the Service at this time, and the report built on the one 
which was presented in November 2016.  

Members were advised that the action plan aimed to address 78 recommendations, 
grouped under 9 work streams, to improve the RDS and would be delivered in three 
phases with a target completion date of April 2018.  It was noted that there were two 
work streams which had been put on hold which were the annual leave arrangements 
and the payment system, as these were interlinked.

The Committee received a demonstration of the RDS online training development 
system and an update on the recruitment pages on the website.

Members were provided with the opportunity to ask questions to the officers present 
in relation to the information contained within the report, as well as the online 
demonstration of the system, and some of the points raised during discussion 
included the following:

 It was queried whether the training was an NVQ type qualification or just 
internal training.  Members were advised that while the training did not provide 
an NVQ qualification, retained fire fighters are trained to a national operational 
standard.  It was also highlighted that the online learning was about 
maintenance and development of skills.

 It was noted that improvements had been made to the Fire and Rescue side of 
the LCC website so it was now more aimed at supporting RDS fire fighters and 
employers, including guidance documents for employers.

 It was confirmed that Fire and Rescue did have a cadet scheme which 
operated in several areas of the county, and young people could get involved 
from the age of 14.  It was noted that this was an area which Fire and Rescue 
was looking to expand.

 Members were informed that there were 24 female retained fire fighters, which 
was around 6% of the total.  It was noted that this was slightly above the 
national average for RDS firefighters.  One of the aims of the project was to 
ensure the recruitment process was as accessible as possible to all members 
of the community.

 It was queried when the Service would be in a position to address work stream 
9 – Payment System and also whether those who worked on a roster were 
more willing to be paid a salary.  Members were advised that this was a 
complex area and officers were still unclear about the relative benefits of a 
salary system.  The variance of pay would be fairly small per individual, but it 
was not certain that this would improve retention, and there was also an 

Page 8



5
PUBLIC PROTECTION AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

25 JULY 2017

ongoing debate at a national level regarding salary systems for RDS staff.  
More work would be done to look at increasing activity such as additional work 
around co-responding and medical services.

 It was queried whether rewarding personnel for providing day time cover had 
been explored, it was confirmed that it had been but it would bring issues of 
disproportionate pay for the same job, and a lot of the hours that people were 
available were due to an individual's lifestyle.

 It was commented that the co-responding by Fire and Rescue and LIVES 
added about 8-9% to EMAS's response times.  However, it was suggested 
that the Joint Ambulance Conveyance Project (JACP) had been a victim of its 
own success as retaining staff was difficult as this was taking up more of their 
time.  It was highlighted that systems were in place to manage availability on 
busy RDS stations as appropriate. 

 It was queried how Fire and Rescue could get across the message to the large 
employers of the benefits of releasing their staff to become retained fire 
fighters, and also if there was anything that councillors could do to help.  
Members were advised that information was available on the website and 
would be circulated to the Committee.

 There was always a dilemma between needing to recruit more people and 
response times, as if the distance requirements were relaxed too much in 
order to widen the opportunities for recruitment, there would be an effect on 
performance and response times.

 In relation to 'hits' logged by the website, it was noted that the website was 
owned by the recruitment department, and they were able to collect the 
statistics.  It was also noted that there were live Facebook feeds, where 
information on the number of people watching could be collected.

 It was noted that salary schemes for retained fire fighters had been used since 
2000.  The longest running system was in South Wales and, while initially it 
appears there were some benefits in terms of recruiting, the longer term 
benefits remain unclear. Once a salary system had been introduced it was 
difficult to revert back to the previous system.

 The Service had successfully piloted a bespoke RDS recruit course in 
partnership with Rase warehouse company to support Bardney fire station.  
While this flexible approach worked well it is recognised that it is resource 
intensive.

 It was commented that the previous year, it had been requested whether the 
Fire and Rescue Budget could be ring-fenced.  However, members were 
advised that while not ring-fenced, Fire and Rescue was a priority service and 
so its budget was protected to a greater extent.

RESOLVED

That the progress against the action plan be noted.

12    PERFORMANCE OF THE LIBRARY SERVICES CONTRACT - ONE YEAR 
REVIEW

Page 9



6
PUBLIC PROTECTION AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
25 JULY 2017

Consideration was given to a report which provided an update of the contract 
performance information to enable the Committee to fulfil its role in scrutinising 
performance of the first year of the outsourced Library Contract to Greenwich Leisure 
Limited (GLL).  It was noted that the Council was now entering its second year of the 
GLL contract, and during the transition period and first year of operation officers had 
found working with GLL to be positive and beneficial.

Joseph Rham and Nicola Rogers from Greenwich Leisure Ltd were also in 
attendance in order to provide an update and answer questions from members of the 
Committee.  Some of the points highlighted to the Committee included the following:

 It had been a successful year, and had been a very positive year in terms of 
working with existing staff.

 In terms of entering year 2 of the contract, GLL would continue to look at the 
service, and it was noted that changes would be made to mobile routes.

 Challenges continued in terms of Lexicon House
 A programme of physical improvements had been embarked upon, and more 

people were being attracted to Lincoln Central Library which was becoming 
more of a centre for events for children and families.  A huge amount of work 
had also been put into redeveloping Stamford Library.

 It was noted that it had not just been about physical improvements but there 
had also been improvements around services for customers.  For example, 
stock was an area where a large amount of work had been carried out 
including how stock was purchased, how it was allocated and the usage 
analysed so that the right stock could be targeted to the local community.

 The annual user survey had been carried out in Lincolnshire for the first time 6 
months earlier, and the highest levels of satisfaction had been recorded for all 
of the 50 contracts that GLL managed, overall satisfaction had been rated at 
99%.

Members were provided with the opportunity to ask questions to the officers present 
in relation to the information contained within the report and some of the points raised 
during discussion included the following:

 Appreciation and congratulations were expressed towards Cllr Worth, 
Executive Councillor for Culture and Emergency Services, for his work in the 
transformation of the libraries, and it was commented that this showed that the 
right decision had been made.

 It was queried what the current situation was with Grantham Library and where 
the library would be relocated to.  Members were advised that this continued 
to remain a concern as the Council was unable to transfer the library to GLL 
due to the lease which did not allow it to be sub-let as the Council paid a 
peppercorn rent.  The Council continued to look for alternative accommodation 
through the property team, as well as working with South Kesteven District 
Council to locate short term premises.  The search had also widened out to 
other areas of the public sector to look for opportunities for any shared 
services or buildings suitable for change of use.   Members were reassured 
that work to resolve this situation was ongoing, however, it was frustratingly 
slow.  Members were also advised that there was no danger of the service 
being withdrawn from the area.  Officers thanked GLL for their continued 

Page 10



7
PUBLIC PROTECTION AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

25 JULY 2017

support of this situation.  It was hoped that a resolution would be found for 
Grantham Library within 12-18 months.

 Members congratulated GLL for achieving all but one of the KPI's and queried 
what scope there was to increase the challenge and increase the targets in 
future years.  Members were advised that this was built into the contract, and 
the targets would increase for the consecutive four years to ensure that there 
was the competitive nature in the service for continued improvement. 

 Members were advised that the staff turnover for the last year had been below 
the threshold of 5%, primarily the team had remained the same but some 
individual had had the opportunity to gain new roles as well as promotions.

 Thanks were given to the Library Development Officers, as footfall in one of 
the non-core libraries (Sutton Bridge) had increased by nearly 30% in the past 
year, and the library had people who came in regularly and was a valued 
facility in the local community.

 It was clarified that ACE was the Arts Council England.
 The Committee thanked all officers for attending, in particular the 

representatives from GLL.

RESOLVED

1. That the Public Protection and Communities Scrutiny Committee support the 
ongoing development and proposed 'Year 2 Developments' highlighted in the 
report.

2. That the Committee receive annual performance updates on the Library 
Service Contract going forward.

13    FUTURE GOVERNANCE MODELS FOR THE HERITAGE SERVICE

Members were advised that the Council had been exploring ways of reducing the 
costs of its Heritage Service whilst improving and enhancing its public offer.  
Consideration was given to a report which described the initial work streams and 
timeframe for exploring potential future governance models for the Heritage Service 
following Executive approval on 4 October 2016 to assess and analyse these 
options.  Officers requested the involvement of the Public Protection and 
Communities Scrutiny Committee in exploring potential future options.

It was reported that a whole service restructure had been completed, and this had 
affected every level of the Heritage Service.  This had been a very challenging and 
difficult restructure, but it was a very considered restructure, and now had the right 
staff in the right positions delivering the right priorities.

Members were advised that the Council would need to make the decision as to 
whether its preference was to keep control and build business, income and market or 
cede control of these assets but realis the immediate savings.  Officers expressed 
gratitude to the Council for allowing the time to form a considered opinion and not 
make a quick decision.

Page 11



8
PUBLIC PROTECTION AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
25 JULY 2017

The Committee was provided with the opportunity to ask questions to the officers 
present in relation to the information contained within the report and some of the 
points raised during discussion included the following:

 Concerns were raised by members as LCC had been hugely successful in 
how it had managed these assets.  There had also been an increased sense 
of public ownership towards some of the assets, e.g. Lincoln Castle.

 Concerns were also raised that educational aspects of the Service were being 
lost at Gainsborough Old Hall for a more light touch approach.

 It was queried whether discussions had been held with the City of Lincoln 
Council as many of the attractions were in Lincoln.  It was confirmed that this 
had taken place.

 It was queried whether there was a steer towards outsourcing the Service, and 
members were advised that this was not the case, and this work would be 
about learning lessons from the past and bringing in the views of councillors 
and the public at the early stages.  The Executive Councillor for Culture and 
Emergency Services was very open minded about the future of the Heritage 
Service.

 It was noted that there was a lot of complexity around the options and status 
and it was this that officers would want to explore further with members during 
the working group.  There was a lot of complexity at a lot of different levels for 
each of the options.

 Officers were liaising with neighbouring authorities including Derby, 
Nottingham, Norfolk, York and Liverpool on different approaches.

 Caution was expressed when looking at other authorities, as those which were 
not 'shire' counties would not have the same funding issues as Lincolnshire.

 It was commented that the Castle, with the vault and the skills academy, was 
an example of what should be done in other areas and had put Lincolnshire on 
the map.  Whichever option was chosen would have to keep this mind and 
also be able to open up additional funding.

 It was suggested that there was a need for the Council to be more 
commercially minded, and to maximise grants and access to private funding 
that could make the heritage service better than it already was.

 There was a need to make use of the opportunities which were out there, and 
councillors would not want to see it diminish as a service if it remained in 
house.  Ideally, the Council needed to maximise opportunities whilst retaining 
control of the asset. 

 It was commented that there had been changes in legislation around 
commercialisation in relation to improving tourism and the economy.

 In relation to Grantham Museum, which was run by a charitable trust, it was 
queried how archived stock would be protected.  Officers advised that there 
was a similar situation with Stamford Museum, where there was a need to look 
at what materials were there that could be better placed within the community.  
Officers confirmed that the Council would continue to support Grantham 
Museum.

 It was noted that benefactors and donors trusted the council, for example, 
being chosen to display the Domesday book as it not been out of the storage 
facility in London for decades, yet Lincoln was chosen.  Lincoln was the only 

Page 12



9
PUBLIC PROTECTION AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

25 JULY 2017

place that was chosen to display it and it was likely that it would be only place 
to display it.

 Following concerns from members, it was confirmed that there was no 
intention to remove the educational programme from Lincoln Castle, but it 
would be reviewed as it was felt that it was too Lincoln – centric.

 It was queried whether there was a comprehensive of all materials which had 
been archived on behalf of Stamford Town Council, and it was acknowledged 
that the collection was not 100% catalogues.  However, as the Archive Service 
was at 100% staffing, managers had re-prioritised staff to start work on 
conducting a three year programme to catalogue each item.  In the 
Lincolnshire Life Museum, there was a 100% record of the physical stock, but 
not the paper materials.  It was queried whether there was a risk management 
issue in terms of not having records of stock, but members were advised that 
officers knew where each item was and it was stored under lock and key.  It 
was also noted that there was a Collection Development Policy which set out 
the type of material that the Council would collect and keep.  Members were 
also advised that there were no plans to dispose of any stock at this stage in 
time.

RESOLVED

1. That the initial work and timeframe of future actions included as part of the 
report be supported.

2. That the formation of a Working Group to consider potential future options, 
bringing recommended options back to this Committee in October 2017 be 
approved.

3. That the following members be part of the working group – Councillors B 
Adams, C J T H Brewis, Mrs  Brockway, A N Stokes and M A Whittington.

14    PUBLIC PROTECTION AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
WORK PROGRAMME

Consideration was given to a report which enabled the Committee to comment on the 
content of its work programme for the coming year to ensure that scrutiny activity was 
focused where it could be of greatest benefit.

During consideration of the work programme, the following points were noted:
 It was requested whether there could be an update on the Blue Light 

Collaboration Project 'sooner rather than later'
 There was a need for the Committee to sit as the Crime and Disorder Panel 

during the year.  It was queried whether it would be possible to have two of 
these meetings.  Members were advised that officers would ensure that at 
least one was booked in.

 A report on the Home Safety Check Strategy would be brought to the 
September 2017 meeting.

Page 13



10
PUBLIC PROTECTION AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
25 JULY 2017

RESOLVED

1. That the work programme as presented at Appendix A to the report be noted.
2. That the additional scrutiny activity noted above be included within the 

Committee's work programme.

The meeting closed at 12.20 pm

Page 14



   
Policy and Scrutiny 

 

Open Report on behalf of Pete Moore,  
Executive Director of Finance and Public Protection 

 

Report to: Public Protection and Communities Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 19 September 2017 

Subject: 
Quarter 1 Performance Report  
(1 April 2017 – 30 June 2017) 

Decision 
Reference: 

  Key decision? No   

Summary:  

The accompanying appendices to this report provide key performance 
information that is relevant to the work of the Public Protection and 
Communities. 
 
 

Actions Required: 

Members of the Public Protection and Communities are invited to consider and 
comment on the performance information contained in this report and highlight 
any recommendations or further actions for consideration. 
 

 
1. Background
 
This report provides the Committee with performance and customer satisfaction 
information for Quarter 1 2017/2018 relevant to Public Protection, Lincolnshire Fire 
and Rescue and Libraries and Heritage Services as set out in the Council's 
Business Plan. 
 
Council Business Plan 2017/2018  
 
The Council Business Plan 2017/2018 was approved by Council on 24th February 
2017. This report lists the measures in the Council Business Plan that are within 
the remit of this Scrutiny Committee. Appendix A includes further details on select 
indicators which have been highlighted for further discussion.  
 
The full detail of all performance measures induced in the Council's Business Plan 
can be found online via the Performance Dashboard.  
 
Web link - http://www.research-lincs.org.uk/CBP-Landing-page.aspx  
 
Appendix B shows a breakdown of customer satisfaction information within the 
remit of this Scrutiny Committee.  

Page 15

Agenda Item 5

http://www.research-lincs.org.uk/CBP-Landing-page.aspx


Public Protection  
 
The public are protected from unsafe and dangerous goods 

 
 
Improve public safety by the reduction in drugs and alcohol misuse, focused on 
town centre alcohol fuelled violence and anti-social behaviour, young people and 
drug misuse 
 

 
 
 

 Alcohol related antisocial behaviour incidents' due to technical issues there 
are some alcohol related anti-social behaviour incidents which have not 
been counted in the Q1 figure of 764 incidents. These will be corrected 
when data is available and it is anticipate that this figure will increase by 
around 70 incidents. Although the exact increase is not yet confirmed, given 
the under-counting of incidents there will be an increase compared to Q1 
2016/2017 (766 incidents). In 2016 the two bank holidays for Easter fell 
within March whereas this year they fell within April which may have 
increased this quarters figures in comparison to last year. The weather may 
also have had an impact on these figures as during Q1 there were some 
warm sunny days which tend to see an increase in drinking behaviour.  

 

 'Alcohol related violent crime incidents' (403 incidents) is up 14% compared 
to Q1 2016/2017 (354 incidents) and is higher than Q4 2016/2017 (370 
incidents). Although all violent crime is continuing on an upwards trend, the 
proportion of violence that is alcohol related has remained similar.  
 

 

Page 16



Increase public confidence in how we tackle domestic abuse 
 

 
 

 'Reported incidents of domestic abuse' due to technical issues there are 
some domestic abuse incidents which have not been counted in the Q1 
(2,196 incidents). These will be corrected when available. It is expected that 
this figure will increase by around 240 incidents when all data is available. 
With this in mind commentary in relation to trends is not possible at present.  

 'Repeat referrals of domestic abuse to MARAC', comparison with previous 
quarters shows an increase by 3.5 percentage points this quarter compared 
to Quarter 4 2016/2017. The total number of referrals (new and repeat) to 
MARAC remains lower than in previous quarters which will have impacted 
the percentage repeat referral rate. The actual number of repeats referred 
(181) is not dissimilar to previous quarters, although is slightly higher than 
the number reported in Quarter 4 2016/2017 (167).  
 

Reduce the number of people killed and seriously injured on Lincolnshire's roads 
 

 
 
Although it is not appropriate to compare the following measures with a target, 
comparisons with historical data have been made:- 
 

 'People killed or seriously injured (KSI) in road traffic accidents' the January 
– March 2017 figure (122 casualties) is higher than the same period in 2016 
(92 casualties). Analysis of collision and casualty data does not indicate any 
clear commonality or patterns. The overall increase in KSI's is mirrored 
across most user groups for example car drivers, motorcyclists, pedestrians 
etc. 

Page 17



 'Children killed or seriously injured (KSI) in road traffic accidents' the figure 
for Jan – Mar 2017 (8 causalities) is higher than both January – March 2016 
and January – March 2015 when there was 1 Child KSI recorded. However, 
the 2015 and 2016 figures of 1 Child KSI were unusually low in comparison 
to the overall average.  
 
 
Reduce adult reoffending 
 

 
 

 'Satisfaction with response to crime and antisocial behaviour' did not meet 
the target of 62%. This measures satisfaction that the police and local 
council are working in partnership to deal with community safety issues. 
2016/2017 survey results (59.9%) are reported in Q1 2017/2018 and 
although for Lincolnshire satisfaction has increased by 4.3 percentage 
points compared to 2015/16 results, and are 2.1 percentage points higher 
than the East Midlands average satisfaction results (57.8%) satisfaction is 
below target. Nationally, satisfaction levels have dropped (61.9% in 
2015/2016 to 61.3% in 2016/2017). Although previous year's results have 
showed a downward trend in satisfaction for Lincolnshire this now appears 
to be improving. 

 

Page 18



Lincolnshire Fire and Rescue 
 
Reduce fires and their consequences 
 

 
 

 'Primary fires' we have seen an increase of 69 fires compared with Q1 last 
year. This can be attributed to a 40% increase in dwelling fires and a 43% 
increase in vehicle fires. In domestic dwellings, the number of cooking 
related fires and fires caused by electrical appliances has increased over 
the previous 2 years. We have developed a strategy around cooking fires 
and have engaged in a national campaign with the manufacturers of white 
goods, with the aim to reduce the occurrence of such incidents in future. 

 'Deliberate primary fires' there has been an increase of 21 deliberate 
primary fires compared with Q1 last year; this is 15 more than target. 
Vehicle fires are the main reason for the increase which has more than 
doubled from the same period last year (35 vehicle fires this year compared 
with 16 in 2016/2017). The Arson Task Force continue to work 
collaboratively with the neighbourhood policing teams on initiatives aimed at 
reducing deliberate fires.  

 'Deliberate secondary fires' there has been an increase of 34 deliberate 
secondary fires compared to Q1 last year; this is 10 more than target. All of 
the increases can be attributed to fires involving refuse. Gainsborough has 
seen an increase from 7 to 25, however local crews remain active with 
community engagement activities and the Arson Task Force work 
collaboratively with the neighbourhood policing teams on initiatives aimed at 
reducing deliberate fires. 

 
 
 

Page 19



Community Assets and Resilience Commissioning 
 
Enable and encourage people to participate in Lincolnshire's culture 
 

 
 
Communities and residents are supported to be involved in local decision making 
and have their views taken into account    
 

 
 
 
2. Conclusion 
 
Members of the Public Protection and Communities Scrutiny Committee are 
invited to consider and comment on the Q1 performance information and 
highlight any recommendations or further actions for consideration. 
 
 

Page 20



3. Consultation 

 

a)  Have Risks and Impact Analysis been carried out? 

N/A 

b)  Risks and Impact Analysis 

N/A 

 

 
 

4. Appendices 

 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Quarter 1 Performance Report  

Appendix B Q1 Customer Satisfaction Information 

 
 

5. Background Papers 
 
No background papers within Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
were used in the preparation of this report. 
 
This report was collated by Daniel Steel, Scrutiny Officer, who can be contacted on 
01522 552102 or daniel.steel@lincolnshire.gov.uk. 
 
 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Communities are safe and protected

Improve public safety by the reduction in drugs and alcohol misuse, 

focussed on town centre alcohol fuelled violence and anti-social 

behaviour, young people and drug misuse 

Alcohol related anti-social behaviour incidents

5

This measure is a count of Police recorded Anti Social Behaviour incidents. An Anti Social Behaviour 

incident is classed as alcohol-related if it fulfils one of the following criteria:

Where alcohol has been identified as contributing to the incident.

The incident is classed as either ‘street drinking’ or ‘drunken behaviour’.

The caller’s initial description of the incident contains the words ‘drunk’, ‘drink’, ‘alcohol’, ‘intoxicated’, or 

‘urinate’.

A lower number of alcohol related anti-social behaviour incidents indicates a better performance.

Not achieved

764
Incidents

Quarter 1 June 2017

728
Incidents

Target for June 2017

About the latest performance

Due to technical issues there are some alcohol related anti-social behaviour incidents which have not 

been counted in this figure. These will be corrected when data is available where we would anticipate 

this figure to increase by around 70 incidents. With this in mind commentary in relation to trends is not 

possible at present.

Although the exact increase is not yet confirmed, given the under-counting of incidents we can see that 

there will be an increase compared to the same quarter last year. Last year the two bank holidays for 

Easter fell within March whereas this year they fell within April which may have increased this quarters 

figures in comparison to last year. The weather may also have had an impact on these figures. During 

this last quarter we have seen some warm sunny days which as a result tends to see an increase in 

drinking behaviour with people having barbeques and day drinking in beer gardens.

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Cumulative total 764

Incidents 764

Target 728

710

720

730

740

750

760

770

Incidents 

Alcohol related anti-social behaviour 
incidents 

Page 23



Decrease alcohol related anti-social behaviour by 5%. A large proportion of anti-social behaviour 

incidents are alcohol related. We want to reduce the impact that alcohol related anti-social behaviour 

has on individuals and communities by reducing the occurrence.  

Further details

About the target

About the target range

The target range for this measure allows for a +/- 1% fluctuation against the target.

About benchmarking

This measure is local to Lincolnshire and therefore is not benchmarked against any other area. 

Page 24



Communities are safe and protected

Improve public safety by the reduction in drugs and alcohol misuse, 

focussed on town centre alcohol fuelled violence and anti-social 

behaviour, young people and drug misuse

Alcohol related violent crime incidents

6

This measure is a count of all Home Office notifiable violence against the person offences (excluding 

'no crimes') where alcohol is identified as contributing to the incident. Violence against the person 

offences includes all assaults apart from sexual offences. This is not a statutory measure and is used 

as a local indicator only, Home Office notifiable offences refer to the offence classification. For more 

information about Home Office notifiable offences see:  

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/counting-rules-for-recorded-crime.

A lower number of alcohol related violent crime incidents indicates a better performance.

Not achieved

403
Incidents

Quarter 1 June 2017

336
Incidents

Target for June 2017

About the latest performance

Alcohol related violence is up 14% compared to quarter one in 2016-17 and is higher than last quarter. 

Although all violent crime is continuing on an upwards trend, the proportion of violence that is alcohol 

related has remained similar.

There were four bank holidays during this quarter compared to two in the same quarter last year, which 

may have increased this quarters figure in comparison to last year. The weather may also have had an 

impact on these figures. During this last quarter we have seen some warm sunny days which, as a 

result, tends to see an increase in drinking behaviour with people having barbeques and day drinking in 

beer gardens.

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Cumulative total 403

Inceidents 403

Target 336

300

320

340

360

380

400

420

Incidents 

Alcohol related violent crime incidents 

Page 25



About the target range

The target range for this measure allows for a +/- 1% fluctuation against the target.

About benchmarking

This measure is local to Lincolnshire and therefore is not benchmarked against any other area. 

About the target

Decrease alcohol related violent crime by 5%. A significant number of violence against the person 

offences are alcohol related. Reducing alcohol related violent offences will help us make sure 

Lincolnshire is a safe place to live and visit.

Further details

Page 26



This measure is a count of all incidents reported to the Police where a Domestic Abuse Stalking and 

Harassment (DASH) risk assessment was completed. These risk assessments are performed in all 

incidents that meet the government's definition of domestic abuse:  

"Any incident or pattern of incidents of controlling, coercive, threatening behaviour, violence or abuse 

between those aged 16 or over who are, or have been, intimate partners or family members regardless 

of gender or sexuality. The abuse can encompass, but is not limited to: Psychological, Physical, Sexual, 

Financial and Emotional abuse.

A higher number of reported incidents of domestic abuse indicates a better performance. Domestic 

Abuse is under reported for many reasons. We take reports of Domestic Abuse seriously and 

encourage reporting to the Police therefore an increase in reporting is to be seen as a positive, as it 

allows us to reach more people who need support.

Not achieved

2,196
Incidents

Quarter 1 June 2017

2,506
Incidents

Target for June 2017

About the latest performance

Due to technical issues there are some domestic abuse incidents which have not been counted in this 

figure. These will be corrected when available. It is expected that this figure will increase by around 240 

incidents when all data is available. With this in mind commentary in relation to trends is not possible at 

present.

Communities are safe and protected

Increase public confidence in how we tackle domestic abuse

Reported incidents of domestic abuse

7

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Cumulative total 2196

Incidents 2196

Target 2506

2000

2050

2100

2150

2200

2250

2300

2350

2400

2450

2500

2550

Incidents 

Reported incidents of domestic abuse 

Page 27



Our aim is to increase reports of domestic abuse to the Police by 3%. Any increase in reports of 

domestic abuse to the Police will allow us to reach more people who need support.

Further details

About the target range

The target range for this measure allows for a +/- 0.5% fluctuation against the target.

About benchmarking

This measure is local to Lincolnshire and therefore is not benchmarked against any other area. 

About the target

Page 28



Not achieved

13

Communities are safe and protected

Reduce adult reoffending

Satisfaction with response to crime and anti-social behaviour

This measure helps demonstrate our achievement against Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 

1998 "Duty to consider crime and disorder implications" which sets out the requirement for Local 

Authorities to work in partnership with relevant agencies " …to do all that it reasonably can to prevent 

crime and disorder in its area". Satisfaction that the Police and Local Council are dealing with anti-social 

behaviour and crime issues is a measure of successful multi-agency response in Lincolnshire.

The measure is a national statistic by the United Kingdom Statistics Authority and is sourced directly 

from  Crime Survey for England and Wales (CSEW) reports.

Data is reported with a 3 month (1 quarter) lag so 2017/18 data will be reported in Q1 2018/19.

Numerator: The number of respondents strongly agreeing or tending to agree that Police and Local 

Council are dealing with issues.

Denominator: The number of respondents who answered the question.

The Crime Survey for England and Wales does not provide data for the numerator or denominator.

A higher percentage of people who are satisfied with the response to crime and anti-social behaviour 

indicates a better performance.

59.9
% satisfied

March 2017

62
% satisfied

Target for March 2017

About the latest performance

Satisfaction that police and local council are working in partnership to deal with community safety issues 

in Lincolnshire has increased by 4.3 percentage points in 2016/17 compared to 2015/16 results. The 

results for Lincolnshire are 2.1 percentage points higher than the East Midlands average satisfaction 

results (57.8%). Nationally, satisfaction levels have dropped (61.9% in 2015-16 to 61.3% in 2016-17). 

Previous year's results have showed a downward trend in satisfaction for Lincolnshire however this now 

appears to be improving. 

2015/16 2016/17

Percentage 55.6 59.9

Target 62 62

50

52

54

56

58

60

62

64

% satisfied 

Satisfaction with response to crime and 
anti-social behaviour 

Page 29



We want to ensure that we fulfil our duty to the public and that our customers are satisfied. Therefore 

the target for this measure is to meet or exceed the national average for England and Wales (62% in 

2015-16).

Further details

About the target

About the target range

The target range for this measure allows for no fluctuation against the target.

About benchmarking

This measure has been benchmarked against the national average for England and Wales (62% in 

2015-16). We aim to meet or exceed the national figure. 

Page 30



268
First time offenders

January 2016 to December 

2016

203
First time offenders

Target for December 2016

About the latest performance

The most recent published FTE (first time entrants) figure for Lincolnshire is 268 actual young people 

for the period of January 2016 to December 2016. This is higher than the target figure of 203, but a 

reduction on previous numbers (see further details). The  number of young people entering the criminal 

justice system for the first time is mostly controlled by external influences, e.g. Police policies, and 

therefore it is difficult to predict future performance. However, there are no expectations that this figure 

is likely to rise sharply in the near future. The figure of 268, when expressed as a rate per 100,000, 10 

to 17 year old population is 431, which is higher than the local Midlands region of 357, however the 

National average is 327.

In July we launched a new diversionary project in Lincolnshire in conjunction with Lincolnshire Police. 

This, through joint co-operation between both Services, will divert young people that

offend at a low level, through local panels that will try to prevent those young people from getting a 

criminal record. What we should see will be a more effective restorative justice process, instead of 

giving the young person a criminal record that will unfairly affect their future life chances. This also 

should therefore help reduce the numbers of first time entrants.

15

Communities are safe and protected

Reduce the number of young people committing a crime

Juvenile first time offenders

The First Time Entrant (FTE) measure is a rate per 100,000 of 10-17 population in Lincolnshire. 

However, for this purpose we are reporting the actual number of young people, rather than the rate. 

Data is reported with a 6 month lag and a rolling 12 month period, for example July 2016 - June 2017 

data is reported in Q3 2017/2018. 

The number of young people entering the criminal justice system for the first time is mostly controlled by 

external influences such as Police policies. 

A lower number of young people entering the criminal justice system for the first time indicates a better 

performance.

Not achieved

Jan 2016 -
Dec 2016

Apr 2016 -
Mar 2017

Jul 2016 -
Jun 2017

Oct 2016 -
Sep 2017

Offenders 268

Target 203

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

First time 
offenders 

Juvenile first time offenders 

Page 31



About the target

Our target is based on the average performance of Youth Offending Services within the Midlands Youth 

Justice Board region. The target is set by Lincolnshire County Council, the Youth Justice Board monitor 

and challenge progress.

Further details

About the target range

Target ranges are difficult to define as external factors can have a major influence on the numbers of 

young people entering the criminal justice system for the first time, for example arrests made by the 

Police and decisions whether to prosecute or not. it has been agreed that +/-20 First Time Entrants is a 

resonable target range.

Page 32



About benchmarking

Data from the Ministry of Justice is used to benchmark First Time Entrant per 100,000 population. 

The Youth Offending Team (YOT) comparators in this instance are Cambridgeshire, Cornwall, Devon, 

Gloucestershire, Leicestershire, Norfolk, North Yorkshire, Somerset, and West Mercia.

NOTE: The original analysis used in calculating the YOT families (based on socio-economic factors) is 

now around 10 years old. In that time, the demographics and socio-economic factors of the local areas 

will have changed. Therefore, it is advised caution be used when using these YOTs families.

Lincolnshire County Council provides performance reports to the Chartered Institute of Public Finance 

and Accountancy (CIPFA) which facilitates benchmarking services to enable performance to be 

monitored against other local authorities. We benchmark against other Local Authorities within our 

CIPFA Group of 16 authorities. The CIPFA comparators in this instance are Cumbria, Derbyshire, 

Gloucestershire, Norfolk, Nottinghamshire, Somerset, Staffordshire, Suffolk, and Warwickshire.

NOTE: The comparators are taken from the CIPFA website and use the default options for selecting 

Councils similar to Lincolnshire.

Page 33



Not achieved

42.91
Per 100,000 population

Quarter 1 June 2017

32.16
Per 100,000 population

Target for June 2017

About the latest performance

We have seen an increase of 69 fires compared with Q1 last year. This can be attributed to a 40% 

increase in dwelling fires and a 43% increase in vehicle fires. In domestic dwellings, the number of 

cooking related fires and fires caused by electrical appliances has increased over the previous 2 years. 

We have developed a strategy around cooking fires and have engaged in a national campaign with the 

manufacturers of white goods, with the aim to reduce the occurrence of such incidents in future. Our 

Arson Task Force work closely with neighbourhood policing teams to reduce the number of deliberate 

vehicle fires.

Communities are safe and protected

Reduce fires and their consequences

Primary fires

19

Number of incidents of fires involving property (i.e. buildings, vehicles, recycling banks, caravans etc.); 

and/or casualties, fatalities or rescues; and/or five or more pumping appliances where the Fire Service 

attended (per 100,000 population).

Numerator is the number of primary fires.

Denominator is the population of Lincolnshire.

The rate per 100,000 population is calculated as follows: 

Numerator divided by the denominator multiplied by 100,000.

A lower rate of primary fires per 100,000 population indicates a better performance.

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Cumulative total 42.91

Rate 42.91

Target 32.16

0.00

5.00

10.00

15.00

20.00

25.00

30.00

35.00

40.00

45.00

50.00

Per 100,000 
population 

Primary fires 

Page 34



About the target range

A target range of 2% either side of the likely number of incidents at the end of the year.

About benchmarking

Benchmarking data for this measure is not available

The target is set to aim for continuous improvement, including the following factors: 1) Progress towards 

2020 Vision targets, 2) The results of our performance last year, 3) Our Service priorities and 4) Drive 

for continuous improvement.

Further details

About the target

Page 35



Not achieved

0.97
Per 10,000 population

Quarter 1 June 2017

0.77
Per 10,000 population

Target for June 2017

About the latest performance

There has been an increase of 21 deliberate primary fires compared with Q1 last year; this is 15 more 

than target. Vehicle fires are the main reason for the increase which has more than doubled from the 

same period last year (35 vehicle fires this year compared with 16 in 2016/17). The Arson Task Force 

continue to work collaboratively with the neighbourhood policing teams on initiatives aimed at reducing 

deliberate fires.

Communities are safe and protected

Reduce fires and their consequences

Deliberate primary fires

21

Number of incidents of fires involving property (for example buildings, vehicles, recycling banks, 

caravans and so on); and/or casualties, fatalities or rescues; and/or five or more pumping appliances 

where the Fire Service attended & determined that the cause of the fire was deliberate/malicious intent 

(per 10,000 population).

Numerator is the number of deliberate primary fires.

Denominator is the population of Lincolnshire.

The rate per 10,000 population is calculated as follows: Numerator divided by the denominator multiplied 

by 10,000.

A lower rate of deliberate primary fires per 10,000 population indicates a better performance.                                                                                                

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Cumulative total 0.97

Rate 0.97

Target 0.77

0.00

0.20

0.40

0.60

0.80

1.00

1.20

Per 10,000 
population 

Deliberate primary fires 

Page 36



About the target range

A target range of 5% either side of the likely number of incidents at the end of the year.

About benchmarking

Benchmarking data for this measure is not available

The target is set to aim for continuous improvement, including the following factors: 1) Progress towards 

2020 Vision targets, 2) The results of our performance last year, 3) Our Service priorities and 4) Drive 

for continuous improvement.

Further details

About the target

Page 37



Not achieved

1.25
Per 10,000 population

Quarter 1 June 2017

1.13
Per 10,000 population

Target for June 2017

About the latest performance

There has been an increase of 34 deliberate secondary fires compared to Q1 last year; this is 10 more 

than target.  All of the increases can be attributed to fires involving refuse. Gainsborough has seen an 

increase from 7 to 25, however local crews remain active with community engagement activities and the 

Arson Task Force work collaboratively with the neighbourhood policing teams on initiatives aimed at 

reducing deliberate fires. 

Communities are safe and protected

Reduce fires and their consequences

Deliberate secondary fires

22

Number of incidents of fires:- not involving property; were not chimney fires in buildings; did not involve 

casualties, fatalities or rescues; were attended by four or fewer pumping appliances where the Fire 

Service attended and determined that the cause of the fire was deliberate/malicious intent (per 10,000 

population).

Numerator is the number of deliberate secondary fires.

Denominator is the population of Lincolnshire.

The rate per 10,000 population is calculated as follows:

Numerator divided by the denominator multiplied by 10,000.

A lower rate of deliberate secondary fires per 10,000 population indicates a better performance. 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Cumulative total 1.25

Rate 1.25

Target 1.13

1.06

1.08

1.10

1.12

1.14

1.16

1.18

1.20

1.22

1.24

1.26

1.28

Per 10,000 
population 

Deliberate secondary fires 

Page 38



About the target range

A target range of 5% either side of the likely number of incidents at the end of the year.

About benchmarking

Benchmarking data for this measure is not available

The target is set to aim for continuous improvement, including the following factors: 1) Progress towards 

2020 Vision targets, 2) The results of our performance last year, 3) Our Service priorities and 4) Drive 

for continuous improvement.

Further details

About the target

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



Customer Satisfaction Information 
Public Protections and Communities Scrutiny Committee Q1 
Date range for report 1st April 2017 – 30th June 2017

LCC Overview of compliments

Overall Compliments
The overall compliments received for Public Protections and Communities shows a decrease of 
19% this Quarter, with 21 compliments being received compared to 26 received last Quarter. 

Current
Q1 Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1Total number of compliments 

relating to Public Protections and 
Communities Scrutiny Committee 21 26 47 26 23

Current 
Q1 
17/18 

Q4
16/17

Q3
16/17

Q2
16/17

Q1
16/17Total number of complaints 

received across all LCC service 
area. 159 169 143 117 152

Total number of complaints 
relating to Public Protections and 
Communities Scrutiny Committee

7 6 3 6 8

Total Service Area Complaints 
broken down 
Community Safety 0 0 0 0 0
Community Cohesion 0 0 0 0 0
Emergency Planning 0 0 0 0 0
Fire and Rescue 2 0 0 0 1
Registration, Celebratory and 
Coroners Services 5 6 3 3 3

Trading Standards 0 0 0 1 3
Public Health 0 0 0 0 0
Libraries & Heritage 0 0 0 2 1

LCC Overview of complaints
The total number of LCC complaints received this Quarter (Q1) shows a 6% decrease on the 
previous quarter (Q4). When comparing this Quarter with Q1 of 2016/17, there is a 5% 
increase when 152 complaints were received. 

Public Protections and Communities Compliments
Public Protections and Communities have received 21 compliments this Quarter. The 
compliments were: 
7 x Fire and Rescue 

- These were relating an emergency responses, visits, staff presentations & the Training 
Centre

10 x Registration, Celebratory and Coroners Service 
- These were in relation to staff compliments & praise for ceremonies.

4 x Heritage
- These were all in relation for Lincoln Castle visits & events

Page 41



Number of complaint escalations 
relating to Public Protections and 
Communities Scrutiny Committee

0 0 Data not previously reported

How many LCC Corporate 
complaints have not been 
resolved within service standard 0 1 6 8 4

Number of complaints referred to 
ombudsman 9 7 8 17 5

This Quarter Public Protections and Communities has received 7 complaints which is an 
increase of 17% on last Quarter when they received 6 complaints. When comparing this 
Quarter with Q1 2016/17, there is 12.5% decrease with 8 complaints being received.

Registration, Celebratory and Coroners 

This Quarter Registration, Celebratory and Coroners has received 5 complaints which is 
decrease of 1 from last Quarter when 6 were received.  The complaints were regarding:

- 2 x staff conduct complaints
- Condition & surroundings of Registry Office
- 2 x treatment of families by Coroner's Service 

3 of these complaints were substantiated and 2 were partly substantiated.

Fire & Rescue

This Quarter Fire & Rescue has received has received 2 complaints which is an increase of 2 
from last Quarter when 0 were received. The complaints were regarding:

- Conduct of Audit Officers
- Pressure exerted to extend examination deadlines

These were both partly substantiated 

Complaint escalations
In Quarter 1 of 2017/18 there were a total of 12 complaint escalations for LCC.
None of these related to Public Protection and Communities.

Ombudsman Complaints
In Quarter 1 of 2017/18, 9 LCC complaints were registered with the Ombudsman. None of 
these complaints were recorded against Public Protection and Communities. 

Page 42



 
Policy and Scrutiny 

 

Open Report on behalf of Nick Borrill, Chief Fire Officer 

 

Report to: Public Protection and Communities Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 19 September 2017 

Subject: 
Change of Service Delivery Strategy and Transition from 
Home Safety Checks to Safe and Well Visits  

Decision 
Reference: 

  Key decision? No   

Summary:  

Having delivered Home Fire Safety Checks for in excess of 15 years and fitted 
many thousands of smoke alarms in people's homes, the number of serious 
dwelling fires has fallen whilst the rate of ownership of working smoke alarms 
has risen to an all time high. Despite these trends people continue to lose their 
lives to fire. This and the national drive promoting fire and rescue services as a 
health asset has brought about a change in service delivery strategy, focusing 
our resources on the most vulnerable and developing the popular 'Home Safety 
Check' into a more holistic 'Safe and Well Visit'. The range of issues tackled has 
expanded over the years from a pure fire safety check into a broader home 
safety check. Whilst fire safety remains hugely important, it seems that now is 
the time to broaden the check once again to incorporate a wider range of 
issues, recognising the effectiveness of the fire service's preventative work.  
 
This paper seeks to inform committee members of the key changes to our 
Home Safety Check service delivery strategy and provide an understanding of 
the new Safe and Well Check that is currently being piloted. 

 
 

Actions Required: 

The Public Protection and Communities Scrutiny Committee are invited to 
consider the change in service delivery strategy and transition from Home 
Safety Checks to Safe and Well Visits and offer feedback as appropriate. 

 

 
1. Background 
 
1.1 Change in Strategy 
 
Lincolnshire Fire and Rescue’s Prevention Strategy, as set out in the IRMP 
Baseline Document1, commits the Service to deliver targeted Home Safety Checks 
and work with partners to signpost the residents of Lincolnshire to the most 
appropriate services for their needs.  

                                                 
1
 https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/lincolnshire-fire-and-rescue/about-us/service-planning/irmp-baseline-

document/130350.article  

Page 43

Agenda Item 6

https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/lincolnshire-fire-and-rescue/about-us/service-planning/irmp-baseline-document/130350.article
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/lincolnshire-fire-and-rescue/about-us/service-planning/irmp-baseline-document/130350.article


 
Over recent years the Service has delivered against this strategy predominantly 
through Home Safety Checks in targeted areas within the community which have 
been identified using a range of data sources including local demographics and 
delivered by both Community Safety Checks. The checks have been aimed 
primarily at reducing the impact of domestic dwelling fires and increasing smoke 
detector ownership.  
 
The English Housing Survey 2014-152 found that 93% of surveyed homes now had 
smoke alarms fitted and since then new legislation3 has made installation of smoke 
alarms mandatory in all private sector rented property which has increased 
ownership even further. Clearly through a range of initiatives both national and 
local, smoke alarm ownership is becoming the norm and evidence suggests that 
the need to provide smoke alarms is becoming secondary to a range of health and 
wellbeing related issues. 
 
Working in partnership, the Service has, over the years, worked hard to establish 
referral pathways with a broad range of community services, the success of this 
partnership working has led to increasing numbers of referrals, to the point that 
almost all of the home Safety Checks completed are now through referrals. It 
became clear from these referrals that we were reaching the more vulnerable 
members of our communities and that many of the people we visited had needs far 
greater than those that we had traditionally encountered. We found that our 
community safety staff, known as Advocates, needed to establish new pathways 
with partners to help resolve the issues identified and increasingly needed new 
skills. Recognising the increasing volume and the great value of this work, the 
Service took the step of reviewing its approach to delivering Home Safety Checks.  
 
The resultant new approach takes into consideration the level of risk presented in 
each case, ensuring those at highest risk are treated as a priority. By allocating a 
risk score we are able to prioritise our resources.  There are three factors that 
influence the level of risk and thereby the priority, these are: 
 

 Likelihood – the probability of having a fire 

 Severity – the risk factors of the individual based on lifestyle 

 Outcome – the interventions required to reduce the risk 
 
A risk matrix is then used to allocate and prioritise visits to the most vulnerable as 
follows: 
 

 Critical Risk – within 5 days by CFS Advocate 

 High risk – within 10 days by CFS Advocate 

 Medium Risk – within 30 days by fire crews 

 Low risk – DIY Pack 
 

                                                 
2
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/539096/Smoke_Alarms_in_English_Homes_

Full_Report.pdf  
3
 Energy Act 2013: Section 150. http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2013/32/contents  

Page 44

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/539096/Smoke_Alarms_in_English_Homes_Full_Report.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/539096/Smoke_Alarms_in_English_Homes_Full_Report.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2013/32/contents


The Home Safety Checks are then delivered by appropriately skilled staff, we use 
our fire crews to deliver the medium risk visits which generally require little in the 
way of additional support or specialist equipment and our advocates to deliver the 
high and critical risk visits which tend to be more complex, usually involve a degree 
of partnership working and often require one or more return visits.  For the low risk 
cases we direct the householder to a do it yourself pack available either from the 
Service website or where through the post where internet is not a medium that the 
householder is comfortable with.  
 
This new approach is now established and we are finding more of our Advocate 
time being spent supporting those at highest risk. With many of the issues 
identified being broader than the traditional fire or home safety matters and 
requiring multi agency support, it is now considered appropriate to progress to the 
next stage. So we have taken the decision to develop the ‘Home Safety Check’ into 
a ‘Safe and Well Visit’ in line with the nationally supported direction. 
 
1.2 The National Position 
 
NHS Sustainability and Transformation Plans released in August 2015 set out a 
Five Year Forward View in which Fire and Rescue Services (FRS) nationally are 
identified as a health asset. Working together with Public Health England, the 
National Fire Chief’s Council (NFCC), the Local Government Association and Age 
UK established a new working relationship aimed at improving the quality of life for 
people who would benefit from brief health and wellbeing interventions in their own 
homes, and better co-ordinated public services.  
  
The Strategic Health Group and NFCC continue to promote ‘Fire as a Health Asset’ 
to the Government, including the devolved administrations, the NHS, social care 
departments and third sector organisations.  
 
1.3 Chief Fire Officers Association (CFOA) Health Strategy 2015-19  
 
This strategy (Appendix A) sets out how CFOA, now the NFCC, are leading the 
drive to provide greater collaboration between fire and health services to produce 
better health outcomes for the communities they serve. Such collaboration will 
support a number of wider priorities and issues for both the fire and rescue service 
and our health partners.  
  
As part of their work NFCC have developed guidance to assist fire & rescue 
services to develop their highly successful ‘Home Safety Check’ initiatives into 
more holistic ‘Safe and Well Visits’.  
 
Between October 2015 and March 2016, three fire and rescue services took part in 
a pilot which intended to measure the impact of their interventions on reducing the 
risk of winter-related ill health in vulnerable people. The pilot aimed to address the 
health risks of falls, social isolation, cold homes and flu during the winter months. 
  
The evaluation demonstrates the value of fire and rescue service engagement with 
this work. A summary of the evaluation follows: 
  

Page 45



 Of over 6000 homes visited, more than half of these resulted in the 
identification of households with people at risk of a fall, social isolation or a 
cold home 

 Approx. 3500 of these visits resulted in a referral to other services 

 Advice and/or home adaptations were provided to over 5000 households 

 It is estimated that the pilot resulted in the avoidance of 147 visits to 
accident and emergency 

 80 new falls assessments for those at risk of a fall were completed 

 A return of £7 in social benefits for every £1 additional investment was 
achieved 

 People receiving a visit found it valuable and felt it had a positive outcome 
on their health and wellbeing 

 The pilot strengthened local partnerships and complemented the work of 
health, social care and voluntary sector organisations.   

 
1.4 The Safe and Well Visit in Lincolnshire 
 
We looked to identify opportunities within Lincolnshire, and commenced 
discussions with partners across the county. A number of opportunities were 
identified that could improve community health and wellbeing outcomes, 
particularly to the more vulnerable people of our community, enhance existing 
prevention and response activities, add value and potentially reduce costs to 
partner organisations.  
 
Working on the model used for the pilot referred to in 1.3 and with support from 
partners we developed a ‘Safe and Well Visit’ aligned to Lincolnshire’s needs.  
 
The visit is aimed at the more vulnerable residents and offers fire safety, housing, 
practical lifestyle and general wellbeing advice. It also includes a falls assessment 
and given the significant rise in cooking related fires, offers specific advice on 
cooking safety. 
 
We have now commenced the transition from ‘Home Safety Check’ to ‘Safe and 
Well Visit’ with a local seven week pilot which started on the 14th August 2017. A 
review will take place at the end of the pilot with a view to a full roll out to all ten 
Community Fire Safety Advocates and our nine Wholetime Duty System fire crews 
by November 2017. 

 
2. Conclusion 
 
Lincolnshire Fire and Rescue aim to offer a greater contribution to the health, 
safety and welfare of the communities of Lincolnshire through concentrating its 
resources on delivery of a Safe and Well Visit to the most vulnerable whilst 
continuing to provide good service to those most able to help themselves. 

 
 
 
 

Page 46



3. Consultation 

 
 

 
 

 
 

a)  Have Risks and Impact Analysis been carried out? 

Yes 

b)  Risks and Impact Analysis 

This is available within Fire and Rescue's Community Fire Safety department 
 

 

 
4. Appendices 

 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Health Strategy 2015 – 2019: Fire and Rescue Services as a 
Health Asset 

 
 
 

4. Background Papers 
 
No background papers within Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
were used in the preparation of this report. 
 
This report was written by Simon York, who can be contacted on 01522 555130 or 
Simon.york@lincoln.fire-uk.org. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 47



 

Appendix A 

 

 

Page 48



Page 49



 

 

Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



 
 
 

 

Page 61



 

 

Page 62



 
 

Policy and Scrutiny 
 

Open Report on behalf of Richard Wills,  
Director responsible for Democratic Services 

 

Report to: Public Protection and Communities Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 19 September 2017 

Subject: 
Public Protection and Communities Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme  

Decision 
Reference: 

  Key decision? No   

Summary:  

This item enables the Committee to consider and comment on the content of its 
work programme for the coming year to ensure that scrutiny activity is focused 
where it can be of greatest benefit. The work programme will be reviewed at 
each meeting of the Committee to ensure that its contents are still relevant and 
will add value to the work of the Council and partners.  
 
Members are encouraged to highlight items that could be included for 
consideration in the work programme.  
 
 

Actions Required: 

Members of the Committee are invited to: 
1) Review, consider and comment on the work programme as set out in 

Appendix A to this report. 
2) Highlight for discussion any additional scrutiny activity which could be 

included for consideration in the work programme. 
 

 
1. Background 
 
Overview and Scrutiny should be positive, constructive, independent, fair and 
open. The scrutiny process should be challenging, as its aim is to identify areas for 
improvement. Scrutiny activity should be targeted, focused and timely and include 
issues of corporate and local importance, where scrutiny activity can influence and 
add value. 
 
Overview and scrutiny committees should not, as a general rule, involve 
themselves in relatively minor matters or individual cases, particularly where there 
are other processes, which can handle these issues more effectively. 
   
All members of overview and scrutiny committees are encouraged to bring forward 
important items of community interest to the committee whilst recognising that not 
all items will be taken up depending on available resource. 
 
 

Page 63

Agenda Item 7



Committee Scope 
 
As part of its terms of reference, the Public Protection and Communities Scrutiny 
Committee will work to review and scrutinise the following services and their 
outcomes: 

 Volunteering support 

 Adult education 

 Financial inclusion 

 Community engagement and development 

 Community hubs 

 Library services and archives 

 Heritage services 

 Preventing and reducing crime 

 Tackling domestic abuse 

 Fire and rescue and emergency response 

 Trading standards 

 Emergency planning 

 Road safety 

 Reducing anti-social behaviour 

 Registration, celebratory and coroner's services 
 
There will inevitably be service specific subjects that the scrutiny committee will 
want to consider, either through policy development, project updates, or through 
pre-decision scrutiny.   
 
 
Purpose of Scrutiny Activity 
 
Set out below are the definitions used to describe the types of scrutiny, relating to 
the items on the Committee Work Programme:  
 

Policy Development - The Committee is involved in the development of policy, 
usually at an early stage, where a range of options are being considered.  
 
Pre-Decision Scrutiny - The Committee is scrutinising a proposal, prior to a 
decision on the proposal by the Executive, the Executive Councillor or a senior 
officer. 
 
Policy Review - The Committee is reviewing the implementation of policy, to 
consider the success, impact, outcomes and performance.  
 
Performance Scrutiny - The Committee is scrutinising periodic performance, 
issue specific performance or external inspection reports.    
 
Consultation - The Committee is responding to (or making arrangements to) 
respond to a consultation, either formally or informally.  This includes pre-
consultation engagement.   
 

Page 64



Budget Scrutiny - The Committee is scrutinising the previous year’s budget, or 
the current year’s budget or proposals for the future year’s budget.  

 
Requests for specific items for information should be dealt with by other means, for 
instance briefing papers to members.  
 
 
Identifying Topics 
 
Selecting the right topics where scrutiny can add value is essential in order for 
scrutiny to be a positive influence on the work of the Council. Members may wish 
to consider the following questions when highlighting potential topics for discussion 
to the committee:- 
 

 Will Scrutiny input add value? 
Is there a clear objective for scrutinising the topic, what are the identifiable 
benefits and what is the likelihood of achieving a desired outcome?  

 

 Is the topic a concern to local residents? 
Does the topic have a potential impact for one or more section(s) of the local 
population? 

 

 Is the topic a Council or partner priority area? 
Does the topic relate to council corporate priority areas and is there a high 
level of budgetary commitment to the service/policy area? 

 

 Are there relevant external factors relating to the issue? 
Is the topic a central government priority area or is it a result of new 
government guidance or legislation? 

 
 
Scrutiny Review Activity 
 
Where a topic requires more in-depth consideration, the Committee may 
commission a Scrutiny Panel to undertake a Scrutiny Review, subject to the 
availability of resources and approval of the Overview and Scrutiny Management 
Board. The Committee may also establish a maximum of two working groups at 
any one time, comprising a group of members from the committee.  
 
 
2. Conclusion
 
The Committee’s work programme for the coming year is attached at Appendix A 
to this report.  A list of all upcoming Forward Plan decisions relating to the 
Committee is also attached at Appendix B. 
 
Members of the Committee are invited to review, consider and comment on the 
work programme as set out in Appendix A and highlight for discussion any 
additional scrutiny activity which could be included for consideration in the work 

Page 65



 

programme. Consideration should be given to the items included in the work 
programme as well as any 'items to be programmed' listed. 
 
 
3. Consultation 
 

a)  Have Risks and Impact Analysis been carried out? 
Not Applicable 
 
b)  Risks and Impact Analysis 
Not Applicable 
 
 
 
4. Appendices 

 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Public Protection and Communities Scrutiny Committee – Work 
Programme 

Appendix B Forward Plan of Decisions relating to the Public Protection and 
Communities Scrutiny Committee 

 
 
5. Background Papers 
 
No background papers within Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were 
used in the preparation of this report. 
 
This report was written by Daniel Steel, Scrutiny Officer, who can be contacted on 
01522 552102 or by e-mail at daniel.steel@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

Page 66

mailto:daniel.steel@lincolnshire.gov.uk


APPENDIX A

Public Protection and Communities Scrutiny Committee

19 SEPTEMBER 2017 – 10:00am
Lecture Room 1, Emergency Planning and Business Continuity Centre, Lincolnshire Fire and 

Rescue Headquarters, South Park Avenue, Lincoln, Lincolnshire, LN5 8EL
Item Contributor Purpose

Quarter 1 Performance Report
(1 April to 30 June 2017)

Nick Borrill, Chief Fire Officer, 
Daryl Pearce, County Officer - 
Public Protection, Nicole Hilton, 
Chief Community Engagement 
Officer

Review of the Key Performance 
and Customer Satisfaction 
Information.

Transition from Home Safety 
Checks to Safe and Well Visits

John Cook, Acting Deputy Chief 
Fire Officer; Simon York, Area 
Manager Planning, Prevention & 
Protection

Review of Home Safety Check 
(HSC) strategy and the work 
being undertaken to move to 
Safe and Well Visits, which 
contributes to the county’s 
wellbeing agenda.

Emergency Planning 
An informal session for Committee members and Councillors will be held at the end of the meeting on 
the work of Emergency Planning Business Continuity Service.

31 OCTOBER 2017 – 10:00am
Item Contributor Purpose

Annual Prevent Review Report Nicole Hilton, Chief Community 
Engagement Officer, Paul Drury, 
Programme Officer - Prevent

The Lincolnshire Annual report 
on Prevent related activities in 
relation to local authority 
responsibilities as defined under 
Counter Terrorism & Security Act 
2015.

Fire and Rescue Statement of 
Assurance

Nick Borrill, Chief Fire Officer To consider and note the 
contents of Lincolnshire Fire and 
Rescue Authority’s Statement of 
Assurance 2016 - 2017.

Road Safety Partnership 
Annual Report

Steven Batchelor, Lincolnshire 
Road Safety Partnership

Annual update on the Road 
Safety Partnership including 
information on fatal, killed and 
serious injury figures for 
Lincolnshire.

Future Governance Structure 
for the Heritage Service

Nicole Hilton, Chief Community 
Engagement Officer, Louise 
Egan, Libraries & Heritage Client 
Lead

Update and Policy Development 
item on the work being 
undertaken on the potential 
future governance models for the 
Heritage Service.

Page 67



31 OCTOBER 2017 – 10:00am
Item Contributor Purpose

Citizen Engagement Strategy 
(Next Steps paper)

Nicole Hilton, Chief Community 
Engagement Officer

Policy Development item 
describing the initial work 
streams and timeframes for the 
exploration of the potential 
options for the Citizen 
Engagement Strategy

12 DECEMBER 2017 – 10:00am
Item Contributor Purpose

Quarter 2 Performance Report
(1 July to 30 September 2017)

Nick Borrill, Chief Fire Officer, 
Daryl Pearce, County Officer - 
Public Protection, Nicole Hilton, 
Chief Community Engagement 
Officer

Review of the Key Performance 
and Customer Satisfaction 
Information.

Fire and Rescue – Fire Peer 
Challenge Report

Nick Borrill, Chief Fire Officer To present the outcomes from 
the Local Government 
Association (LGA) / Chief Fire 
Officers Association (CFOA) Fire 
Peer Challenge. 

23 JANUARY 2018 – 10:00am
Item Contributor Purpose

Revenue and Capital Budget 
Proposals 2018/19

TBC Pre-Decision Scrutiny Item on 
the budget proposals for 
2018/19.  The comments of the 
Committee will be passed to the 
Executive for consideration.

Future Governance Structure 
for the Heritage Service

Nicole Hilton, Chief Community 
Engagement Officer, Louise 
Egan, Libraries & Heritage Client 
Lead

PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY
Executive – 4 April 2018

13 MARCH 2018 – 10:00am
Item Contributor Purpose

Citizen Engagement Strategy Nicole Hilton, Chief Community 
Engagement Officer, Bev 
Finnegan, Programme Manager, 
Community Engagement

PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY
Executive – 4 April 2018

24 APRIL 2018 – 10:00am
Item Contributor Purpose

Quarter 3 Performance Report
(1 October to 31 December 
2017)

Nick Borrill, Chief Fire Officer, 
Daryl Pearce, County Officer - 
Public Protection, Nicole Hilton, 
Chief Community Engagement 
Officer

Review of the Key Performance 
and Customer Satisfaction 
Information.

Page 68



Items to be Programmed

 Joint Ambulance Conveyance Project
 Domestic Abuse 
 Assisting Rehabilitation through Collaboration (ARC)
 Blue Light Collaboration Programme 
 Fire and Rescue Integrated Risk Management Plan

Sitting as the Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee
 Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership (LCSP) Priorities
 Neighbourhood Policing

For more information about the work of the Public Protection and Communities Scrutiny 
Committee please contact Daniel Steel, Scrutiny Officer on 01522 552102 or by e-mail at 
daniel.steel@lincolnshire.gov.uk

Page 69

mailto:daniel.steel@lincolnshire.gov.uk


APPENDIX B

Forward Plan of Decisions relating to the Public Protection and Communities Scrutiny Committee

DEC REF MATTERS FOR 
DECISION

DATE OF 
DECISION

DECISION 
MAKER

PEOPLE/GROUPS 
CONSULTED PRIOR TO 
DECISION

DOCUMENTS 
TO BE 
SUBMITTED 
FOR 
DECISION

HOW AND WHEN TO 
COMMENT PRIOR TO 
THE DECISION BEING 
TAKEN

RESPONSIBLE 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER 
AND CHIEF OFFICER

KEY 
DECISION 
YES/NO

DIVISIONS 
AFFECTED

I013959 
New! 

Future Governance 
Structure for the 
Heritage Service 

4 April 
2018 

Executive Public Protection and 
Communities Scrutiny 
Committee 

Report Chief Community 
Engagement Officer Tel: 
01522 553831 Email: 
nicole.hilton@lincolnshire
.gov.uk 

Executive Councillor: 
NHS Liaison, 
Community 
Engagement and 
Executive Director for 
Environment and 
Economy 

Yes All Divisions 

I014208 Citizen Engagement 
Strategy 

4 April 
2018 

Executive Public Protection and 
Communities Scrutiny 
Committee 

Report Programme Manager, 
Community Engagement 
Tel: 01522 550516 Email: 
bev.finnegan@lincolnshir
e.gov.uk 

Executive Councillor: 
NHS Liaison, 
Community 
Engagement and 
Executive Director for 
Environment and 
Economy 

Yes All Divisions 

P
age 70


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 18 July 2017
	5 Quarter 1 Performance Report (1 April 2017 - 30 June 2017)
	Appendix A - Performance Data
	Appendix B - Customer Satisfaction Information

	6 Change of Service Delivery Strategy and Transition from Home Safety Checks to Safe and Well Visits
	7 Public Protection and Communities Scrutiny Committee Work Programme
	Appendix A&B


